
1

NOTICE OF MEETING
CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE DECISION MEETING

TUESDAY, 6 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT 2.00 PM

CONFERENCE ROOM A - CIVIC OFFICES, 2ND FLOOR

Telephone enquiries to Lisa Gallacher 02392 834056
Email: lisa.gallacher@portsmouthcc.gov.uk

CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE DECISION MEETING
Councillor Ryan Brent (Conservative)

Group Spokespersons

Councillor Alicia Denny, UK Independence Party
Councillor John Ferrett, Labour
Councillor Rob Wood, Liberal Democrat

(NB This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is 
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the 
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are 
accepted.

A G E N D A

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of Members' Interests 

3  Budget Monitoring for Quarter 1 (Pages 1 - 4)

Purpose of report 
To inform the Cabinet Member of the projected revenue expenditure within the 
portfolio cash limit for the current financial year 2016-17. This report sets out 
the budget position and contributing factors to the projected overspend within 
the portfolio as at the end of June 2016. 

RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member:



2

(1) Notes the Children's Social Care Portfolio forecast budget 
position, at the end of June 2016, of £0.4m in excess of current 
approved cash limit provision.

(2) Supports the ongoing process of budget review and 
implementation of proposals to reduce the projected overspend 
position and deliver a balanced budget within the area of 
Children's Social Care. 

4  Children's Lives in Portsmouth - A response to the key issues 
highlighted by the Children's Society in the recent report (Pages 5 - 32)

Purpose of report
To update members with the work being done by services across the council 
following the publication of The Children's Society report Children's Lives in 
Portsmouth.

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social 
media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records 
those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at 
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the 
meeting's venue.



 

 

 
                                              

  
 
Decision maker: 
 

 
Cabinet Member for Children's Social Care 

Subject: 
 

Children's Social Care Portfolio Budget Monitoring 
Report for the First Quarter 2016/17 
 

Date of decision: 
 

6 September 2016 

Report from: 
 

Chris Ward, Director of Finance and Section 151 
Officer 
 

Report by: 
 

Richard Webb, Finance Manager 
 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

Key decision: No 

Budget & policy framework decision: No 
 

 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 

1.1. To inform the Cabinet Member of the projected revenue expenditure within the 
portfolio cash limit for the current financial year 2016-17. This report sets out the 
budget position and contributing factors to the projected overspend within the 
portfolio as at the end of June 2016.  

 
2. Summary 
 

2.1. Following overspend positions in the previous two years, and an initial projected 
financial pressure of around £1.2m on the budget for this year, the portfolio is 
currently forecast to overspend by £0.4m in 2016-17.  
 

3 Recommendations 
 

3.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet Member: 
 
3.1.1 Notes the Children's Social Care Portfolio forecast budget position, at the 

end of June 2016, of £0.4m in excess of current approved cash limit 
provision. 
 

3.1.2 Supports the ongoing process of budget review and implementation of 
proposals to reduce the projected overspend position and deliver a 
balanced budget within the area of Children's Social Care.  
 
 
 



 

 

4 Background 
 
4.1 At the commencement of 2016-17 the Children's Social Care Portfolio was 

created containing the budget areas pertaining to Child Social Care & 
Safeguarding, Troubled Families and Early Years & Children's Centres. 
 

4.2 Expenditure on Children's Social Care and Safeguarding was subject to much 
scrutiny during 2014-15 and 2015-16 exceeding the budget provision for each 
year as it did. Under the approved financial arrangements, an overspend is 
carried forward by the portfolio in the following financial year, as portfolio's are 
now expected to manage their financial resources across financial years in order 
to encourage medium term operational and financial planning. However 
overspends from prior years have been subsumed corporately to provide a clean 
starting point for the new portfolio. 
 

4.3 Significant work has already been undertaken to establish whether the Looked 
After Children and Safeguarding services more generally are costly or not, 
compared to our statistical neighbours. Establishing this provides a guide to the 
extent to which savings / efficiencies might be achievable. The evidence 
gathered to date indicates that the cost of Safeguarding is low to average, whilst 
performance is generally good. Scope to make significant savings therefore 
would appear limited although possible. 

 
5 Summary Position against Cash Limited Budget at the end of June 2016 

 
5.1 The current projected overspend for the Children's Social Care Portfolio is 

forecast at £0.4m, all attributable to the Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding 
service as identified below.  

 
Service Area Current 

Budget 
Current 
Forecast 

Variation 

 £000 £000 £000 

Troubled Families 213 213 0 

Early Years & Children's Centres 230 239 9 

Children Social Care & Safeguarding 22,928 23,370 442 

 23,371 23,822 451 

 
 

5.2 Troubled Families has a cash limit allocation of £213,000 and this is 
supplemented by significant grant funding estimated at some £1,043,000, of 
which £793,000 is dependent on target achievement. Current spending is in line 
with estimates. 
 

5.3 Early Years and Children's Centres have a cash limit budget of £230,000, which 
is supplemented by Public Health funding allocation to provide an overall budget 
of £1,818,000. At the current time, whilst there are certain pressures on the 
budget, it is anticipated that these will be managed and the service will spend 
broadly in line with the budget. 
 



 

 

5.4 The Children's Social Care and Safeguarding budget is currently forecasting an 
overspend of £0.4m. This is the summation of variations in a number of areas 
which are explained further below: 

 
5.4.1 Assessment and Intervention Service (£125,000 under spend): 

Current staffing levels, turnover and vacancies have led to staffing costs 
for the year being currently projected some £163,000 below budget. The 
ability to maintain the vacancies at these levels and deliver these 
projected "savings" will need to be kept under review. 
 

5.4.2 At the same time a pressure of £38,000 is forecast in respect of 
expenditure in providing assistance to those with no recourse to public 
funds or children in need (under Section 17 of the Children Act 1989).  
 

5.4.3 Looked After Children (LAC) (£377,000 over spend): The reason for 
the overspend is largely related to higher costs and numbers of child 
placements resulting in a forecast overspend of £370,000, as shown 
below. This is obviously a volatile area with continual movement in 
numbers, however the forecasts are based on current placement 
numbers and costs being maintained on average until the year end. 
These costs exclude Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children and may 
reduce further following a review of funding contributions towards 
external residential placements.  

 

 
 

5.4.4 Staffing costs are currently projected to be below the budget provision by 
around £153,000, reflecting staff turnover and vacancies anticipated for 
the year. 
 

5.4.5 With added focus on Adoption support in line with the government's 
adoption agenda to move children into permanent arrangements, there is 
an anticipated pressure of £100,000, associated with the purchase of 
placements and removal of Government support for inter-agency 
placements later in the year. A further £60,000 pressure is anticipated on 
a variety of other budget areas. 

 
5.4.6 Safeguarding & Monitoring (£23,000 over spend): staffing stability 

means that anticipated turnover savings are not being realised in this 
area of the service.  

 

June 2016

Average
Av Unit 

Cost
Budget

Average 

Predicted 

Av Unit 

Cost

Estimated 

Outturn

Budget 

Pressure

Nos £ £ Nos £ £ £

External Residential 9.02 107,871 973,000 7.85 174,807 1,372,235 399,235

Semi Ex-Residential 2.42 23,967 58,000 0.00 23,967 0 -58,000

Independent Fostering Agency (IFA) 49.29 44,293 2,183,200 39.08 45,290 1,769,933 -413,267

In-House Fostercare 193.95 20,540 3,983,700 207.25 21,027 4,357,846 374,146

Adoption 60.07 5,827 350,000 62.25 5,835 363,229 13,229

Residence 27.96 6,438 180,000 25.33 7,517 190,406 10,406

Special Guardianship 118.58 4,962 588,400 129.58 4,879 632,221 43,821

TOTAL 8,316,300 8,685,869 369,569

Budget Current Forecast

Placement Type



 

 

5.4.7 Support Activities (£162,000 over spend): This projected overspend is 
predominantly related to delays in the delivery of savings proposals. 

 
6 Summary 
 

6.1 The portfolio budget is currently overspending and can broadly be attributed to 
placement costs as described in section 5 of this report. Other pressure areas 
and delayed savings delivery have been broadly offset by in year savings from 
staffing turnover and vacancies. 
 

6.2 Significant work has already been undertaken to establish whether the Looked 
After Children and Safeguarding services more generally are costly or not, 
compared to our statistical neighbours. Establishing this provides a guide to the 
extent to which savings / efficiencies might be achievable. The evidence 
gathered to date indicates that the cost of Safeguarding is low to average cost 
whilst performance is generally good. Scope to make significant savings 
therefore would appear limited although possible. 
 

7 Equality impact assessment (EIA) 
 

7.1 No impact assessment has been carried out as the proposals do not have any 
impact upon a particular equalities group. 

 
8 Legal comments 
 

8.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from the recommendations in this 
report.  

 
9 Director of Finance comments 
 

9.1 Financial comments are contained within the body of the report.  
 
 
 

……………………………………………… 
Chris Ward, Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer  
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The information upon which this report has been based has been drawn from a variety of 

sources; however much of the information used is held in budget files prepared by 
the Children and Education Finance Team. Please contact Richard Webb, Finance 
Manager, if required. 

 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 

rejected by the Cabinet Member for Children's Social Care on 6 September 2016.   
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Cabinet Member  for Children's Social Care 



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  
Title of meeting:  Children's Social Care Portfolio Decision Meeting 

 
Subject: 
 

Children's Lives in Portsmouth - A response to the key 
issues highlighted by the Children's Society in the recent 
report 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

Tuesday 6th September 

Report by: 
 

Sarah Newman, Deputy Director of Children's Services - 
Children's Social Care 

Wards affected: 
 

All 

 

 
 
 
1. Requested by: Alison Jeffery, Director of Children's Services 
 
2. Purpose:  To update members with the work being done by services across the    

council following the publication of The Children's Society report 
Children's Lives In Portsmouth 
 

  
3. Background 

 
3.1.  In May 2016, the Children's Society published a series of reports about children's 

lives in different Local Authority areas. The report for Portsmouth, Children's Lives 
In Portsmouth outlined issues affecting children in Portsmouth who are at risk of 
abuse or neglect, and those living in the poorest families. The report distinguishes 
a number of groups of children - which I have dealt with separately below 
 

A. Children in Need/Adolescents in Need 

 The Children's Society report highlights that there are 43,360 children in 
Portsmouth, and 1436 categorised as children in need. At the end of May 
2016, Children's Social Care was working with 1348 children. During 
2015/16 Children's Social Care completed almost 1900 assessments to 
determine whether children needed support from Children's Social Care 
under the statutory framework for children in need as outlined by S17 
Children Act 1989. 
 

 The Children's Society report highlighted concern about the support 
available for 16 and 17 year olds in the city, citing that nationally over 90 per 
cent of 16 and 17 year olds remain in their parents care. In Children's Social 
Care we have worked with our foster carers and with colleagues from 
Housing Options to ensure that there is a range of accommodation available 
to children and young people who cannot live at home.  



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 

 Between 01/04/2015 and 31/03/2016 49 young people presented to 
Children's Social Care for housing related issues. All these young people 
received an assessment to determine how best to support them. 

 

 The Children's Society previously published a report Getting The House In 
Order outlining the challenges faced by homeless 16 and 17 year olds. This 
report makes recommendations to improve the safeguarding response to 
these young people. In particular, there is a recommendation that no child 
under 18 can be made intentionally homeless. 

 

 In Portsmouth all children who present as homeless are jointly assessed by 
Children's Social Care and Housing and a joint protocol exists outlining who 
has responsibility for what so as to promote best practice. In addition to this 
there is a joint arrangement to oversee the commissioning arrangements of 
supported accommodation for vulnerable 16 and 17 year olds. 

 
B.  Children who go missing from home or care 

 The Children's Society report highlights that every child who goes missing 
from home or care should be offered an independent return interview. 
Portsmouth City Council has recently reviewed the Missing, Exploited and 
Trafficked Strategy and strengthened the guidance for children who go 
missing from home or care. A risk assessment tool now exists along with 
clear pathways for support.  
 

 Children's Social Care commission a service from Barnardo's (Miss U) to 
offer return interviews and provide support to these children. If a child is 
receiving support from Children's Social Care, the allocated social worker will 
complete this work, being independent from the care arrangement, and a 
reporting framework is being developed to ensure we are reaching the right 
children. 

 
C. Mental Health Services for children and young people 

 The Children's Society report highlights that in 2014/15 the average CCG 
spending on mental health for children was £2,721,000 whereas in Wessex 
for the same period it was £2,355,000. The recent report by the Health 
Select Committee that 'there are deeply ingrained problems with the 
commissioning and provision of children's and adolescent's mental health 
services' is cited. 
 

 The Children's Society recommends that the LSCB has oversight of the 
access children have to mental health services and in Portsmouth the 
Safeguarding Board is scrutinising data provided by Public Health and the 
provider service. 

 

 In Portsmouth there are transition processes in place for young people who 
go on to need services as vulnerable adults 

 



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
D. Early Intervention 
 

 The Children's Society report highlights the decrease in general funding 
available for Early Help, and outlines that Portsmouth City Council has 
experienced a decline in financial support by 44.87 per cent between 2010-
11 and 2015-16. 
 

 This decline is mirrored in many other places in the country and chiefly 
reflects the significant reduction over that period in the funding allocation 
nationally for Children's Centres. Portsmouth has had tough decisions to 
make and there have been other reductions in early help services, too. We 
still maintain a number of in-house early help and public health services, 
however, plus contracts with the voluntary sector, such as Barnardo's and 
HomeStart. 

 
E. Immigration 
 

 The Children's Society report outlines that the numbers of unaccompanied 
asylum seekers looked after by Authorities across the county have 
increased. 
 

 Between April 2015 and March 2016 Portsmouth City Council experienced a 
significant rise in the number of UASCs arriving through the port. For a 
significant period of time PCC were looking after between two and five new 
arrivals per year; but 2015/16 saw this increase to 32. The rise in UASC is 
expected to continue. 

 

 To manage increasing demand Children's Social Care is developing 
expertise in managing these young people - assessing for trafficking factors, 
using interpreters, developing a two week induction to Portsmouth, 
developing arrangements with local schools and colleges and building a 
bank of carers motivated to care for these vulnerable children. 

 

 Nationally the government have now established a voluntary dispersal 
scheme so as to distribute the demand for public services across local 
authorities. The scheme is based on an assumption that each LA should 
each accommodate a number of UASC at a rate of 0.07 of the child 
population. In Portsmouth this gives us a quota of 33 UASC. Should more 
children arrive into Portsmouth through the port, we will be working with 
colleagues from neighbouring authorities across the south east to manage 
their transfer. 

 
F. Child Poverty 
 

 The Children's Society estimate that 28.72 per cent of children in 
Portsmouth are living in poverty. They reference The Debt Trap report 
highlighting that a third of families in debt cut back on food, heating and 



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

clothing - and that these families are twice as likely to experience arguments 
and relationship stresses that have a negative impact on children. 
 

 In Portsmouth, we no longer have a Council-run, application-based Local 
Welfare Assistance Scheme, however we have a number of schemes to 
assist families living in poverty. Services available include debt counselling, 
money advisors and a full range of social welfare advice commissioned by 
the Council from Advice Portsmouth, small energy grants during the colder 
months November to March, discount furniture/household goods stores and 
food banks. This information and support is available to 16 and 17 year olds. 
We also have a credit union offering affordable savings and loans schemes 
(loans are not available to under-18s). 

 
4.  Recommendations 

 
4.1. The Children's Society report makes a number of recommendations to improve 

outcomes for children in Portsmouth. The table below highlights the Children's 
Society recommendations, where PCC already has actions in place and where we 
may need to take action. 

 
 

Area of 
concern 

Recommendation Actions 
in place 

Actions  
to be 
considered/ 
developed 

Children in 
Need 

Local authorities should develop written policies 
that offer clarity on the nature and scope of their 
responsibilities in relation to legal aid for separated 
children 

 

 

 Annually monitor the spending on local welfare 
provision to build up a profile of need in the area 

  

Adolescents 
in Need 

Ask your Local safeguarding Board to audit the 
safeguarding response that agencies provide to 16 
and 17 year olds and review thresholds for 
intervention to ensure they do not discriminate 
against or fail to assess 16 and 17 year olds  

 

 

 Adopt an explicit policy that no child under 18 can 
be 'intentionally homeless' 

  

 Review the local homelessness protocol to ensure 
all children under 18 who present as homeless 
receive a joint assessment from Housing and 
Children's Services 

 

 

 Local authorities - as commissioners of supported 
accommodation for vulnerable 16 and 17 year olds 
- should ensure all these settings have effective 
safeguarding policies in place and are regularly 
scrutinised by the Local safeguarding Board 

  

 Health and Wellbeing Boards should ensure local 
joint strategic Needs Assessments explicitly 
include children and young people's mental health. 

 
 



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

They should also study the needs of different 
vulnerable groups at risk of developing mental 
health problems, to assess current and future need 
and inform commissioning strategies 

 

Area of 
concern 

Recommendation Actions 
in place 

Actions  
to be 
considered/ 
developed 

Adolescents 
in Need 

Local authorities, through Local Safeguarding 
Children Boards, should review and monitor 
access to mental health support for children who 
have experienced abuse and trauma. They should 
ensure that such services are commissioned 
locally and that there are policies in place for 
priority access to services for all children who need 
it 

 

 

 All mental health services should have policies in 
place on transitions for young people from 
vulnerable groups between the levels of CAMHS 
services and the transition to adult services. This 
will ensure that children do not fall through the 
cracks of services, and that they have continuous 
access to mental health support. Policies on 
transitions should outline how CAMHS will work 
with other agencies in planning transition 

 

 

 Every local authority needs to have a welfare 
assistance scheme which does not exclude 16 and 
17 year olds from support 

  

Children 
who go 
missing 
from home 
or care 

Every child or teenager who goes missing or 
absent from home or care should be offered an 
independent return interview 

 

 

Early 
Intervention 

Prioritise resources raised through business rate 
growth for early intervention services, using local 
needs assessments and open consultation with 
local residents 

 

 

Immigration Local authorities should ensure the systematic 
collection of data for separated children with non-
asylum immigration claims 

 
 

 Local authorities should train social workers and 
independent Reviewing Officers in the identification 
of children who are out of scope for legal aid, and 
in how to best support their legal needs within this 
new and complex territory 

 

 

Poverty Councils should exempt care leavers from paying 
council tax until to the age of 21 

 
 

 Every local authority should have a debt collection 
strategy which includes measures to address the 
impact of collection on children 

 
 

 Councils should not engage bailiffs for collecting   



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

council tax debt from families who are in receipt of 
Council Tax Support and have children 

 Local authorities should use community hubs as 
locations to deliver outreach debt advice and fuel 
poverty work, to ensure hard to reach families are 
able to access the service and support 

 

 

 

Area of 
concern 

Recommendation Actions 
in place 

Actions  
to be 
considered/ 
developed 

 Local authorities should advertise and promote the 
Warm Home Discount - a rebate of £140 on 
electricity bills for the most vulnerable - in services 
that families access, such as children's centres 

 

 

 Local authorities need to consider the impact of 
changes to disability benefits under UC on families. 
The loss of SDP is likely to be particularly severe. 
There will be a need to reconsider support services 
in light of this 

 

 

 Local authorities have a key role to play in ensuring 
that families with children that need Alternative 
Payment Arrangements under Universal Credit are 
able to receive them 

 

 

 Local authorities need to consider access to online 
provision of UC for local families - particularly for 
those requiring regular updates to claims, such as 
parents with childcare costs 

 

 

 
 
5. Actions 

 
5.1. The following actions will be followed up, in accordance with improving outcomes 

for local children: 
 

1) Children's Social Care to work with the Housing Department to explore 
possibility of commitment that no child under 18 can be made intentionally 
homeless. 
 

2) To consider whether sufficiency report dealing with Housing Options for 16 and 
17 year olds should go to the Safeguarding Board as well as Corporate 
Parenting Board. 

 
3) Children's Social Care to explore whether care leavers can be exempt from 

paying council tax up until the age of age 21. 
 
4) The Acting Tackling Poverty Coordinator will support any work to ensure PCC 

debt collection is appropriate and effective, taking into account the impact on 
families. 

 



THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not  
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or  
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken) 

 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

5) The Acting Tackling Poverty Coordinator continues to review assistance 
schemes and online advice annually in April, and amend it during the year for 
any changes in provision. Learning links are launching a second-hand furniture 
store in Portsmouth that will offer help to people who are unable to afford 
essential household items, which will help us to understand more about this 
need and how it can be met. This offer, and how to access it, will be included in 
the online advice once it is available. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed by (Director of Children's Services) 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 - The Children's Society - Children's Lives in Portsmouth report  
 
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

  

  

 
 
 





Children’s lives in  
Portsmouth

A report by The Children’s Society  

May 2016



Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

2

Introduction� 3

Children at risk� 4

Child poverty and inequality� 9

Conclusion and summary of recommendations� 14

Appendix 1� 16

References� 18

Contents

1in5
children living  
in poverty feels  
like a failure.



Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

3

Introduction
The Children’s Society works with some of the most vulnerable children 
across the country. This report focuses on issues affecting children 
within Portsmouth who are at particular risk of abuse or neglect, and 
those in the poorest families. 

There are currently 43,360 children in Portsmouth, with 1,436 
of these children being categorised as ‘children in need’. This 
report sets out recommendations on the steps you can take to 
help them.

Throughout this report, where data is more appropriate we will provide 
information on a regional basis or from Portsmouth Council. 

If you would like to find out more about any of the issues outlined in 
the report or about the work of The Children’s Society, please contact 
our Senior Public Affairs Officer, Tom Redfearn on thomas.redfearn@
childrenssociety.org.uk or 020 7841 4573.



Under 1  
year old

1–4  
years old

5–9  
years old

10–15  
years old

16–17  
years old

1.97%1.48%1.54%1.67%1.75%

Percentage of children in need because of abuse and neglect, by age

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

4

Children at risk
1. Children in need

In Portsmouth, of the 1,436 children classified as ‘children in need’, 217 are aged 16 
or 17.

The Children’s Society works with adolescents to help them deal with the issues they face, 
helping them develop resilience, advocating for their access to services, providing counselling 
and therapeutic support and educating them to stay safe.

We are particularly concerned about the lack of protection for 16 and 17 year olds who are more 
likely to experience abuse and neglect than any other age group of children1 and yet do not 
receive the same legal protections as younger children. Due to legal changes in education and 
welfare provision, the number of children aged 16 and 17 who remain dependant on their families 
for emotional, financial and other support has increased. Over 90% of children aged 16 or 17 
now live at home with their parents. While most children will get loving and caring support from 
their families, we want to protect those who are threatened by abuse and neglect. 

Recommendations

■■ �Every child or teenager who goes missing or absent from home or care should be offered an 
independent return interview.

■■ �Ask your Local Safeguarding Children Board to audit the safeguarding response that 
agencies provide to 16 and 17 year olds and review thresholds for intervention to ensure they 
do not discriminate against or fail to assess 16 and 17 year olds.



When they came to ask
for help one quarter were 

sofa surfing
with friends. 

1/4

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

5

2. Youth homelessness

Last year in the South East 1890 children aged 16 or 17 presented as homeless. 
These teenagers are often at serious risk of harm and can be escaping homes 
where they face problems such as substance abuse, violence or severe 
overcrowding. 

At The Children’s Society we run a number 
of services to help homeless young people. 
Our services offer family mediation and work 
with both parents and children to re-open 
communication between them and help the 
family make the changes that will allow young 
people to live safely and happily at home.

In circumstances where a safe return to the 
family is not possible, we offer advocacy 
services for these vulnerable young people to 
help them assert their rights and ensure that 
they get all the help and support that they 
want and are entitled to.

Our report Getting the House in Order2  
provides an in-depth view of the challenges 
faced by homeless 16 and 17 year olds and 
makes recommendations to improve the 
safeguarding response of local authorities to 
these children. 

We are pressing Government to strengthen 
the legal framework to better protect older 
children and enable them to safely move 
into adulthood. Local authorities should 
not classify older children as intentionally 
homeless, because doing so results in support 
being withheld. Local authorities should not 
give up on young people who need help but 
refuse to enter the care system. Councils 
need to make sure that the children are in 
accommodation which is safe and regulated.

Recommendations

■■ �Adopt an explicit policy that no child under 
18 can be made ‘intentionally homeless’.

■■ �Review the local homelessness protocol to 
ensure all children under 18 who present as 
homeless receive a joint assessment from 
housing and children’s services.

■■ �Local authorities, as commissioners of 
supported accommodation for vulnerable 
16 and 17 year olds, should ensure all these 
settings have effective safeguarding policies 
in place and are regularly scrutinised by the 
Local Safeguarding Children Board. 



Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

6

3. Mental health services for young people 

In the year 2014–15, total spending on children and young people’s mental health 
spend services (across Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG), local authorities and 
NHS England) in Wessex was £39,245,000. The average local authority CAMHS 
expenditure for local authorities in Wessex was £712,000 with the average spend 
across England being £949,000. In the same period, the average spending by 
CCG on mental health for children in Wessex was £2,355,000 – compared to the 
England average of £2,721,000. 

According to a recent report by the Health 
Select Committee, ‘there are serious 
and deeply ingrained problems with the 
commissioning and provision of children’s 
and adolescents’ mental health services.’3 This 
is supported by the latest available national 
data which shows that only 6% of the NHS 
expenditure on mental health disorders in the 
year 2012–13 was spent on CAMHS4.

The Children’s Society offers a range of 
counselling, befriending and emotional 
support services across the country to some 
of the teenagers who need it most. Our 
practitioners tell us that there is a growing 
need for better mental health support for 
vulnerable children and young people. They are 
particularly worried about the lack of services 
available for older teenagers. We believe that 
commissioning and funding arrangements 
for mental health services for young people 
should be underpinned with robust, up to date 

data on prevalence of mental health needs 
among different vulnerable groups of young 
people , including those in poverty – and 
that there should be a greater focus on early 
intervention.

In last year’s budget announcement, the 
Chancellor committed an additional £1.25 
billion – up to £250 million a year for the 
proceeding five years – to transform and  
boost CAMHS. 

It is important that this new investment 
is used to fill the gaps in current service 
provision – such as facilities for older 
teenagers or therapeutic support for young 
people experiencing separation, abuse or 
other traumatic events. 

Local areas need to undertake assessments 
of the level of need in their area including 
how they will meet the needs of the most 
vulnerable children and young people.

Recommendations

■■ �Health and Well-Being Boards should ensure local Joint Strategic Needs Assessments 
explicitly include children and young people’s mental health and the needs of different 
vulnerable groups at risk of developing mental health problems, to assess current and future 
need and inform commissioning strategies.

■■ �Local authorities – through Local Safeguarding Children’s Boards (LSCBs) – should review 
and monitor access to mental health support for children who have experienced abuse 
and trauma, ensure that such services are commissioned locally, and ensure that there are 
policies in place for priority access to services for all children who need it.

■■ �All mental health services should have policies in place on transitions for young people from 
vulnerable groups between the levels of CAMHS services and to transition to adult services. 
This would ensure that children do not fall through the cracks of services and that they have 
continuous access to mental health support. Policies on transitions should outline how 
CAMHS will work with other agencies in planning transition.



44.87%
Decrease in early intervention grant to  

Portsmouth council between 2010–11 and 2015–16

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

7

4. Early intervention 

The Government allocated £5,860,340 in early intervention funding to Portsmouth 
Council this year, that’s a reduction of £6,695,986 per year compared to 2010. This 
massive reduction means local authorities are less able to address the problems 
experienced by children and families at an early stage. Children suffer harm that 
could have been prevented and the state is faced with greater costs as they are 
forced to deal with more entrenched, serious and expensive problems at a later 
date. 

The consistent fall in funding nationally and 
across regions, reflects the stark reality facing 
local authorities and the scale of challenge 
they now face in preserving early intervention 
services in the future.

In 2010, before the emergency budget, £3.2 
billion was allocated by central government 
for local authority early intervention services. 
By comparison, the 2015 Comprehensive 
Spending Review stated that £939 million 
would be provided to local authorities for early 
intervention services by 2019/20. This would 
equate to a real terms reduction of 71 per cent 
for early intervention services between 2010–
11 and 2019-20.

These substantial spending reductions mean 
that in coming years local authorities will 

need to put particular emphasis on early 
intervention services when allocating their 
annual budgets.

Some local authorities have employed a range 
of different approaches to retaining early 
intervention across local communities. Key 
themes include using programmes with a 
clear evidence base, taking a multi-disciplinary 
approach and attempts to retain a degree of 
universal services.

We run a number of services which intervene 
early to stop problems developing further. 
Our services provide one-to-one support to 
children at high risk of sexual exploitation, 
teaching them about consent, healthy 
relationships and staying safe so they can 
avoid exploitative situations.

Recommendations

■■ �Prioritise resources raised through business rate growth for early intervention services,  
using local needs assessments and open consultation with local residents. 



5. Children with irregular immigration status

In the South East, 660 unaccompanied asylum seeking children were in the care 
of local authorities. These are children fleeing persecution, war and abuse from 
across the globe. There are also many other children in the region with an irregular 
immigration status which can cut them from support and leave them with an 
unsecure future. 

Private fostering is an arrangement that 
is made without the knowledge of a local 
authority for the care of a child under the 
age of 16 (under 18, if disabled) by someone 
other than a parent or close relative with the 
intention that it should last for 28 days or 
more.

Whilst it is difficult to determine the numbers 
of separated migrant children living in private 
foster care arrangements, partly because 
the majority of these arrangements exist 
unknown to child protection authorities, using 
existing data our research has estimated that 
between 9,300 and 12,400 migrant children 
may well be living in private foster care 
arrangements. The immigration status of who 
of these children is often unclear and remains 
unresolved. 

If children with an irregular immigration status 
are within the UK care system, we find that 
all too often immigration control is prioritised 
over their welfare and best interests. These 
children experience low levels of support and 
an inadequate standard of living which can put 
them at risk of destitution, homelessness and 
exploitation.

The Children’s Society work to make sure 
those children we work with do not feel alone 
and have access to the services they are 
entitled to. However, the legal system for 
these children is very complex and difficult to 
navigate without someone independent of the 
Local Authority there to help them. We believe 
that all unaccompanied children seeking 
asylum should be entitled to an independent 
legal advocate to help them navigate complex 
immigration and social care systems. 

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children  
looked after at 31 March 2015, by region

England

North East

North West

Yorkshire and Humber

East Midlands

West Midlands

East of England

London

South East

South West

2630

10

50

60

180

150

280

2090

660

40

Recommendations

■■ �Local authorities should ensure the 
systematic collection of data for separated 
children with non-asylum immigration 
claims.

■■ �Local authorities should train social workers 
and Independent Reviewing Officers in 
the identification of children who are out 
of scope of legal aid and in how to best 
support their legal needs within this new 
and complex territory. 

■■ �Local authorities should develop written 
policies that offer clarity on the nature and 
scope of their responsibilities in relation to 
legal aid for separated children.

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

8



The number of children  
in poverty in Portsmouth  
vs number of children  
in Portsmouth 

28.72%

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

9

Child poverty and inequality
1. Families living with child poverty

It is unacceptable that any child is living in poverty in the UK, let alone almost 
3.7 million children. Poverty has a devastating effect on children, harming their 
immediate well-being and drastically reducing opportunities throughout their 
lives. There are 12,451 children living in poverty in Portsmouth.

We have estimated that there are around 314,504 children in the South East who live in a family 
that is in problem debt. Our The Debt Trap5 report revealed that around a third of families in 
problem debt say they cut back on food within the last month, with a similar proportion saying 
they cut back on heating, and also on clothing for themselves and their children every month in 
order to keep up with repayments. Families trapped in problem debt are also more than twice 
as likely to argue about money problems, leading to stress on family relationships, and causing 
emotional distress for children.

Recommendations

■■ �Every local authority needs to have a welfare assistance scheme which does not exclude  
16–17 year olds from support.

■■ �Annually monitor the spending on local welfare provision to build up a profile of need in  
the area.



6,133
children living in families in council tax debt in Portsmouth

2. Families in council tax debt

Our Debt Trap research also identified that in 2014–15 there were 6,133 children 
living in families in council tax debt in Portsmouth. There are 1.6 million children 
living in families who have faced council tax debt, with 2 in 10 families visited by 
bailiffs to reclaim council tax. This equates to thousands of children experiencing 
fear, intimidation and worry at the hands of bailiffs.

We would urge local authorities to protect 
children by not sending bailiffs round to 
families with children. Our research has shown 
that using bailiffs has a particularly damaging 
impact on the emotional health and well-being 
of children. 

Using bailiffs also incurs an additional cost for 
families that are already struggling. As such, 
we recommend that local authorities use 
alternative collection policies that are available 
to them, putting in place affordable repayment 
plans for families.

Our report The Wolf at the Door6  showed that 
one group particularly susceptible to council 
tax debt is care leavers. In 2014, 6,880 young 
people aged 18 or over ceased to be in the care 
of their local authority.

Often, when care leavers move into 
independent accommodation they begin to 
manage their own budget fully for the first 
time. Young people in this situation have told 
us that managing and understanding council 
tax bills for the first time is frequently a 
challenge. 

To ensure that the transition from care to 
adult life is as smooth as possible – and to 
mitigate the chances of them falling into debt 
as they begin to manage their own finances 
– we recommend that care leavers should be 
exempt from paying council tax until they are 
21. This is an issue that must be decided at a 
national level, as is the case for the student 
exemption. As an interim measure we are 
asking local authorities to make this group 
eligible for 100% council tax support until they 
turn 21.

Recommendations

■■ �Councils should exempt care leavers from 
paying council tax up to the age of 21.

■■ �Every local authority should have a 
debt collection strategy which includes 
measures to address the impact of 
collection on children.

■■ �Councils should not engage bailiffs for 
collecting council tax debt from families 
who are in receipt of Council Tax Support 
and have children.

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

10



7,032
children in Portsmouth living in energy debt.

3. Families in energy debt

Our report Show Some Warmth7 found that there are around 7,032 children in 
Portsmouth living in energy debt. Children in families in energy debt are three 
times more likely to have damp or mould in their homes and to have been ill last 
winter, and are twice as likely to have breathing problems.

Community hubs such as schools and 
nurseries proved to be a useful location for 
building engagement with the community, as 
a number of low income and fuel poor families 
already access the services available there 
– meaning staff could build on the support 
already provided.

Families are often being left with impossible 
choices between keeping their children warm 
and paying off debt – feeling they have no 
alternative to cutting back on hot meals, baths 
or even heating their children’s bedrooms. 

Recommendations

■■ �Local authorities should use community 
hubs as locations to deliver outreach debt 
advice and fuel poverty work, to ensure 
hard to reach families are able to access 
this service and support.

■■ �Local authorities should advertise and 
promote the Warm Home Discount – a 
rebate of £140 on electricity bills for the 
most vulnerable – in services that families 
access, such as children’s centres.

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

11



4. Tackling child poverty through Universal Credit

The introduction of the new Universal Credit (UC) benefits system will have a 
profound impact on millions of children and families across the country. Once it 
has been fully introduced, around half of children in the UK will live in families in 
receipt of UC.

The new system has real potential to make work pay, and to lift children out of poverty. However 
the Government must review the introduction of the new system to ensure that it really supports 
those families that need it most.

Support for children with disabilities 
and the abolition of the Severe Disability 
Premium under UC

A recent report from The Children’s Society 
has shown that many disabled children will 
get considerably less support under UC – for 
many, the value of the disabled child additions 
in UC will be worth only half their current value 
through the disability element of tax credits. 
This will clearly have a significant effect on 
their family income and well-being. 

The Severe Disability Premium (SDP) currently 
gives additional support to disabled adults 
with no other adult to care for them (including 
disabled single parents cared for by a young 
carer). This extra support helps to cover the 
additional costs of living with a disability but 
no carer. 

The Government is abolishing the SDP 
through the introduction of the Universal 
Credit. This will cost families with a young 
carer up to £55.30 per week (£2876 per 
year). This cut could be equivalent to 20% of 
household income after housing costs.

Without the SDP, it is crucial that local 
authorities consider whether the level of 
support provided through social care services 
is sufficient to meet the needs of disabled lone 
parents with young carers.

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

12



Reduced work allowances under 
Universal Credit

Whilst the Government decided to change its 
proposals to reduce income thresholds within 
the Tax Credit system, no similar agreement 
was reached for UC, meaning that many 
working families will see reductions in support 
under UC.

The Children’s Society calculations showed 
that in total 2.4 million families with children 
would have been affected by the Tax Credit 
changes – about 84% of those households 
affected. The proportional impact on families 
with children is likely to be similar in UC.

The impact of payment and 
administration of Universal Credit  
on children

There are a number of changes to the payment 
and administration of UC on families with 
children. For example, payments will be made 
monthly in arrears – which could present 
significant problems to claimants used to 
budgeting on a shorter term basis.  

In addition, payments of UC will not be 
made to the main carer in the household as 
standard. There is considerable evidence that 
the best way to ensure that benefit payments 
for children are used for the child’s needs is to 
pay the support to the main carer – changes 
may present risks to this.

In addition, families living in social rented 
housing will be expected to manage 
housing payments being made to them 
directly. Evidence from the Direct Payments 
Demonstration Project suggested that many 
families struggled to manage with these 
arrangements.

Finally, UC will normally be managed online 
– this could present real challenges for those 
families not able to use the internet, or who do 
not possess the means to do so.

‘Alternative Payment Arrangements’ will 
be available for those who struggle with 
the standard payment and administration 
arrangements – local authorities will have a 
key role to play in making sure families that 
need them get this support.

Recommendations

■■ ��Local authorities need to consider the 
impact of changes to disability benefits 
under UC on families. The loss of the SDP 
is likely to be particularly severe. There will 
be a need to reconsider support services in 
light of this.

■■ �Local authorities have a key role to play in 
ensuring that families with children that 
need Alternative Payment Arrangements 
under Universal Credit are able to receive 
them. 

■■ �Local authorities need to consider access 
to online provision of UC for local families 
– particularly for those requiring regular 
updates to claims, such as parents with 
childcare costs.

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

13



Conclusion and summary  
of recommendations
The next four years will be crucial for children in your area. We look forward to 
working with you to promote policies which will help the most vulnerable children 
and young people.

Our key recommendations for the coming term to help children are: 

■■ �Every child or teenager who goes missing or 
absent from home or care should be offered 
an independent return interview.

■■ �Ask your Local Safeguarding Children Board 
to audit the safeguarding response that 
agencies provide to 16 and 17 year olds and 
review thresholds for intervention to ensure 
they do not discriminate against or fail to 
assess 16 and 17 year olds.

■■ �Adopt an explicit policy that no child under 
18 can be made ‘intentionally homeless’.

■■ �Review the local homelessness protocol to 
ensure all children under 18 who present as 
homeless receive a joint assessment from 
housing and children’s services.

■■ �Local authorities – as commissioners of 
supported accommodation for vulnerable 
16 and 17 year olds – should ensure all these 
settings have effective safeguarding policies 
in place and are regularly scrutinised by the 
Local Safeguarding Children Board.

■■ �Health and Well-Being Boards should 
ensure local Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessments explicitly include children and 
young people’s mental health. They should 
also study the needs of different vulnerable 
groups at risk of developing mental health 
problems, to assess current and future 
need and inform commissioning strategies.

■■ �Local authorities, through Local 
Safeguarding Children Boards, should 
review and monitor access to mental health 
support for children who have experienced 
abuse and trauma. They should ensure that 
such services are commissioned locally and 
that there are policies in place for priority 
access to services for all children who need 
it.

■■ �All mental health services should have 
policies in place on transitions for young 
people from vulnerable groups between 
the levels of CAMHS services and the 
transition to adult services. This will ensure 
that children do not fall through the cracks 
of services, and that they have continuous 
access to mental health support. Policies 
on transitions should outline how CAMHS 
will work with other agencies in planning 
transition.

■■ �Prioritise resources raised through business 
rate growth for early intervention services, 
using local needs assessments and open 
consultation with local residents.

■■ �Local authorities should ensure the 
systematic collection of data for separated 
children with non-asylum immigration 
claims.

■■ �Local authorities should train social workers 
and Independent Reviewing Officers in the 
identification of children who are out of 
the scope of legal aid, and in how to best 
support their legal needs within this new 
and complex territory.

■■ �Local authorities should develop written 
policies that offer clarity on the nature and 
scope of their responsibilities in relation to 
legal aid for separated children.

■■ �Every local authority needs to have a 
welfare assistance scheme which does not 
exclude 16 and 17 year olds from support.

■■ �Annually monitor the spending on local 
welfare provision to build up a profile of 
need in the area.

■■ �Councils should exempt care leavers from 
paying council tax up to the age of 21.

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

14



■■ �Every local authority should have a 
debt collection strategy which includes 
measures to address the impact of 
collection on children.

■■ �Councils should not engage bailiffs for 
collecting council tax debt from families 
who are in receipt of Council Tax Support 
and have children.

■■ �Local authorities should use community 
hubs as locations to deliver outreach debt 
advice and fuel poverty work, to ensure 
hard to reach families are able to access 
this service and support.

■■ �Local authorities should advertise and 
promote the Warm Home Discount – a 
rebate of £140 on electricity bills for the 
most vulnerable – in services that families 
access, such as children’s centres.

■■ �Local authorities need to consider the 
impact of changes to disability benefits 
under UC on families. The loss of the SDP 
is likely to be particularly severe. There will 
be a need to reconsider support services in 
light of this.

■■ �Local authorities have a key role to play in 
ensuring that families with children that 
need Alternative Payment Arrangements 
under Universal Credit are able to receive 
them. 

■■ �Local authorities need to consider access 
to online provision of UC for local families 
– particularly for those requiring regular 
updates to claims, such as parents with 
childcare costs.

If you would like to discuss with us 
any of these issues, please contact 
our Senior Public Affairs Officer, 
Tom Redfearn, at thomas.redfearn@
childrenssociety.org.uk or call 020 7841 
4573

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

15



Appendix 1
How The Children’s Society helps children in England 

Nationally, through our network of 
children’s centres, volunteers and 
targeted services, we worked with over 
34,000 children and young people 
last year, bringing positive changes to 
children and families and supporting 
vulnerable children up and down the 
country. 

Much of our work is aimed at providing long 
term intensive work with the children and 
young people who need it most. Last year we 
helped 15,820 children and young people with 
intensive support.

We know these services are having a great 
impact, with 71% of families and  73% of 
children and young people showing a positive 
change in their lives  

South West

■■ Waves Dorset

■■ Park View Day Nursery (Bournemouth)

■■ �Kingsleigh Children’s Centre 
(Bournemouth)

■■ �Kinson and West Howe Children’s Centre 
(Bournemouth)

■■ �Boscombe Children’s Centre 
(Bournemouth)

■■ CheckPoint Torbay

■■ �Honiton and Axe Valley Children’s Centres 
(Devon)

■■ Exmouth and District Children’s Centre

South East

■■ �The Children’s Society Oxford Young 
Refugees

■■ Include programme

East of England

■■ �Essex Young People’s Drug and Alcohol 
Service (EYPDAS)

■■ Let’s communicate together 

■■ �C.A.R.E – Young people’s drug and  
alcohol service

London

■■ Camden Missing 

■■ Camden CSE 

■■ �Safe Choices Leaving Custody and Care

■■ Boys and Young Men Service

■■ Tower Hamlets Advocacy 

■■ �The US project (Understanding  
Sexual Exploitation)

■■ Rise (trafficking)

■■ Step + Connect (emotional well-being)

■■ Family Voice (refugee and migrant)

■■ Stand By Me (refugee and migrant)

■■ Destitution Project (refugee and migrant)

Midlands

■■ West Midlands Hub

■■ Stars National Initiative

■■ Explore Families

■■ �The Children’s Society in the Black Country

■■ �The Children’s Society in Birmingham and 
Coventry

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

16



North West 

■■ �Manchester Missing from Home 
Programme: Greater Manchester and 
Oldham

■■ �The Children’s Society in Cheshire and 
Warrington

■■ Greater Manchester Mental Health Team

■■ Greater Manchester Hub

■■ The Children’s Society in Lancashire

■■ The Children’s Society in Calderdale

■■ The Children’s Society in Rochdale

■■ Hope Young Refugee Service

Yorkshire and Humber

■■ SMILE Project (York)

■■ Friendship for all (York)

■■ Future Links (York)

■■ LEAP Programme

North East

■■ SCARPA

■■ �SMART (Supporting Migrants, Asylum-
seekers and Refugees Together)

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

17



References
1 �http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/news-and-blogs/our-blog/we-need-to-change-the-law-to-protect-
16-and-17-year-olds

2 �http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/sites/default/files/getting-the-house-in-order_PCR025aHousing_
Report_LR_final_6_web.pdf

3 �http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201415/cmselect/cmhealth/342/342.pdf
4 �https://www.gov.uk/Government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414024/Childrens_

Mental_Health.pdf
5 �http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/publications-library/debt-

trap-exposing-impact-problem-debt-ch
6 �http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/the-wolf-at-the-door-how-

council-tax-debt-collection-is
7 �http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/show-some-warmth-full-
report

Children’s lives in Portsmouth: 

A report by The Children’s Society 

18



PCR083/0516

For more information on this report, please contact:

Tom Redfearn 
Senior Public Affairs Officer, The Children’s Society 
e. thomas.redfearn@childrenssociety.org.uk 
t: 020 7841 4573

©The Children’s Society April 2016. The copyright of all material appearing in this publication belongs  
to The Children’s Society. It may not be reproduced, duplicated or copied by any means without our  
prior written consent. Photographs posed by models. 
Charity Registration No. 221124

It is a painful fact that many children 
and young people in Britain today 

are still suffering extreme hardship, 
abuse and neglect. 

The Children’s Society is a national charity that runs crucial local 
services and campaigns to change the law to help this country’s 

most vulnerable children and young people.

Our supporters around the country fund our services and join  
our campaigns to show children and young people they are  

on their side.

Find out more
childrenssociety.org.uk




	Agenda
	3 Budget Monitoring for Quarter 1
	4 Children's Lives in Portsmouth - A response to the key issues highlighted by the Children's Society in the recent report
	Appendix 1 - Children's Lives in Portsmouth report by the Children's Society




